PAYNES LANDING HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. BYLAWS

- 1. <u>PLAN OF OWNERSHIP</u>. The Paynes Landing Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinafter "Association"), with its office located in Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, has been declared and constitutes a single family dwelling form of ownership and shall be governed by the Deed of Restrictions for Paynes Landing of record in the Scott County Clerk's Office in Miscellaneous Book 21, page 846, Miscellaneous Book 22, page 1, and Miscellaneous Book 22, page 11 (hereinafter "Restrictions"), the Articles of Incorporation for the Association ("Articles"), by these Bylaws and any amendments to said Restrictions, Articles, and Bylaws.
- 2. <u>APPLICABILITY</u>. The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the property described in the Restrictions, including the land, buildings, common areas, and all improvements and structures thereon, as well as all easements, rights of way and appurtenances thereunto belonging in the use, occupancy, sale, lease or other transfer thereof. All owners of any freehold or leasehold interest, all occupants or users of the premises, and the guests, agents and servants of them, are subject to the provisions of the Restrictions, the Articles, the Bylaws, amendments to any of them, and the applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.
- 3. <u>PERSONAL APPLICATION</u>. All present and future lot owners, tenants, guests, licensees, servants, agents, employees, and any person or persons that shall be permitted to use the facilities, shall be subject to the Restrictions, the Articles, the Bylaws, any amendments to said documents, and the rules and regulations issued by the Association to govern the conduct of its members. Acquisition, rental or occupancy of any of the lots shall constitute an acknowledgment that the owner, tenant, or occupant has accepted and ratified these Bylaws, the Articles, the provisions of the Restrictions, the rules and regulations of the Association, and any amendments to any of them, and will comply with them.
- 4. <u>ASSOCIATION OF OWNERS</u>. The Association shall be comprised of every person, firm, corporation, trust, or other legal entity or any combination thereof, which owns any lot or part thereof as more fully set forth in the Articles.

5. MEMBERS' MEETINGS.

(a) The annual members' meeting shall be held at the office of the Association or such other place as may be designated by the Association President in the notice of the meeting, at 7:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, on the first Monday in March of each year for the purpose of electing directors and transacting any and all other business that may be authorized to be transacted by the members. If that day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next day.

- (b) Special members' meetings shall be held whenever called by the President or by a majority of the Board of Directors, and must be called by such officers upon receipt of a written request from members entitled to cast one-third (1/3) of the votes of the entire membership.
- (c) Notice of all members' meetings, stating the place, day, and hour and the objects for which the meeting is called, shall be given by the President or Secretary, unless waived in writing. Such notice shall be in writing to each member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association and shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. Proof of such mailing shall be given by the affidavit of the person giving the notice. Notice of meeting may be waived before or after the meeting.
- (d) At the first meeting called pursuant to paragraph (c) the presence of members entitled to cast a majority of all the votes shall constitute a quorum. If the required quorum is not present, another meeting may be called upon written notice of not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) days. Said meeting shall not be required to satisfy the quorum in order to do business. No such subsequent meeting may be held more than 60 days following the preceding meeting.
- (e) In any meeting of members, each Lot owner shall have one vote for each Lot owned provided however, the Class B Member shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each lot in which it holds the interest required for membership during the period of Class B Membership, as set forth in the Articles. If the Lot is owned by one person, his right to vote shall be established by the record title to his Lot. If his Lot is owned by more than one person or is under lease, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record owners of the Lot and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If the Lot is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a certificate of appointment signed by the President or Vice-President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the corporation filed with the Secretary of the Association. Similarly, if the Lot is owned by a limited liability company, a partnership, trust, or other entity, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a certificate of appointment signed by the appropriate

persons on behalf of said limited liability company, partnership, trust or other entity. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the Lot concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of a Lot may be revoked by any Owner of that Lot. No revocation of a certificate or certificate of employment shall be valid unless it is in writing and filed with the Secretary of the Association. No owner whether one or more persons shall have more than one ownership per Lot, and each Lot shall be entitled to only one vote.

- (f) Owners may not vote by written proxy, but an Owner's vote may be cast by the Owner's spouse in the Owner's absence.
- (g) Votes may be cast in person or in writing signed and notarized by the person entitled to vote. If a person votes in writing, it shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting.
- (h) A member shall be entitled to vote at any annual meeting or at special meetings of members called pursuant to these Bylaws; however, such members shall not be entitled to vote unless he or she have fully paid all assessments made or levied by the Board of Directors against such member and each lot owned by such member, as provided in these Bylaws, together with all interest, costs, attorneys' fees, penalties, and other expense, if there be any, properly chargeable to such members and against each lot owned by such member, at least five (5) days prior to the date fixed for such annual or special meeting, provided statements for such assessments were duly mailed or delivered to such member pursuant to the Restrictions or these Bylaws, and any amendments to such documents.

6. DIRECTORS.

- (a) The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) Directors, the exact number to be determined at the time of election. Directors' fees shall be determined by the members.
- (b) At such time as the Directors are to be elected by the Association and not by appointment by the Developer, the election of directors shall be conducted at the annual members' meetings. A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than thirty (30) days prior to the annual members' meeting. The committee shall nominate one person for each Director to be elected. Additional nominations for directorships or Directors may be made from the floor. The initial and first succeeding Board of Directors shall be appointed by the Developer, Canewood,

- LLC (hereinafter "Developer"). The Developer shall appoint two Directors to serve a one year term and one Director to serve a two year term. Thereafter, Directors shall be elected after serving two year terms with two Directors being elected in one year and one Director elected in the following year. The election shall be by ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent) and by a plurality of the votes cast, each person voting being entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. There shall be no cumulative voting.
- (c) At such time as the initial election of the Board of Directors, only a member of the Paynes Landing Homeowners Association who has fully paid all assessments made or levied by the Board of Directors against such member and each Lot owned by such member may serve on the Board of Directors. Upon sale of such owner's Lot who is a member of the Homeowners Association, such position of directorship shall cease as to that director. Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining Directors.
- (d) Any Director may be removed by concurrence of two-thirds (%) of the votes of the entire membership at a special meeting of the members called for that purpose. The vacancy in the Board of Directors so created shall be filled by the members of the Association at the same meeting.

7. DIRECTORS' MEETINGS.

- (a) The organizational meeting of a newly elected Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days of its election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which time they are elected, and no further notice of the organizational meeting shall be necessary providing a quorum shall be present.
- (b) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone, or telegraph at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting.
- (c) Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the President and must be called by the Secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the Directors. Notice of the meeting shall be given personally or by mail, telephone, or telegraph at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting, which notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting.

- (d) Any director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.
- (e) A quorum at a Directors' meeting shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors less than a quorum is present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice. The joinder of a Director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such Director for the purpose of determining a quorum.
- (f) The presiding officer of Directors' meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer has been elected, or, if not, the President shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer, the Directors present shall designate one of their number to preside.
- 8. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the Restrictions, these Bylaws, and any amendments to said documents, shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, its agents, contractors, or employees, subject only to the approval by lot owners when such is specifically required. Compensation of employees of the Association shall be fixed by the Directors. A Director may be an employee of the Association, and a contract for management of the development may be entered into with a Director.

9. <u>OFFICERS</u>.

- (a) The executive officers of the Association shall be the President, who shall also be a Director, a Treasurer and a Secretary, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and who may be removed by vote of the Directors at any meeting. Any person may hold two or more offices except that the President shall not also be the Secretary. The Board of Directors may from time to time elect other officers to exercise such powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association. Compensation of officers shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.
- (b) The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of President of a Corporation, including but not limited to the power

to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he may in his discretion determine appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

- (c) The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Secretary of a Corporation and as may be required by the Directors or the President. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent.
- (d) The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities, and evidence of indebtedness. He shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of the Treasurer.
- 10. <u>ACCOUNTING</u>. The funds and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be common expenses:
- (a) "Current expenses," which shall include all funds and expenditures to be made within the year for which the funds are budgeted, including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds, except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements, or to operations. The balance in this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for current expenses for the succeeding year.
- (b) "Reserve for deferred maintenance," which shall include funds for maintenance items which occur less frequently than annually.
- (c) "Reserve for replacement," which shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, depreciation, or obsolescence.
- (d) "Additional improvements," which shall include the funds to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property which will be part of the common elements.
- 11. <u>BUDGET</u>. The Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for each calendar year which shall include the estimated funds required to defray common expenses and to provide funds for the accounts listed in section 10 of these Bylaws. The budget shall take into account the following items:

- (a) Current expenses.
- (b) Reserve for deferred maintenance.
- (c) Reserve for replacement.
- (d) Additional improvements.
- (e) Operations.
- 12. <u>ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS DUE DATE</u>. The annual assessment will be dated January 1 of each year and will be due and payable on or before February 1 of that year. The assessment will be prorated for the initial lot owner (other than Developer) in the event of occupancy for a portion of the year, with a pro-ration to be calculated by determining the number of days of occupancy of the lot owner from the date of occupancy through December 31 of that year.
- 13. <u>LIEN FOR ASSESSMENTS</u>. All sums assessed to any Lot pursuant to the Restrictions and these Bylaws, together with interest cost charges and reasonable attorney's fees as provided herein, shall be secured by a lien on such Lot in favor of the Association. Such lien shall be superior to all other liens and encumbrances on such Lot except for:
 - (a) Liens for ad valorem taxes; and
- (b) A lien for all sums unpaid which are secured by a first in priority mortgage or any mortgage in favor of Developer duly recorded in the public records of Scott County, Kentucky and all amounts advanced pursuant to such mortgages and secured thereby in accordance with the terms of such instruments.

All other persons acquiring liens or encumbrances on any Lot which become liens after the Declaration is filed for record shall be deemed to consent that such liens or encumbrances shall be inferior to future liens for assessments, as provided herein, whether or not such consent be specifically set forth in the instruments creating such liens or encumbrances.

14. <u>EFFECT OF NONPAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS; REMEDIES OF THE ASSOCIATION</u>. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. Any assessment due for a period of fifteen (15) days shall incur a late charge of 10%. The Association shall cause a notice of delinquency to be given to any Owner who has not paid within fifteen (15) days following the due date. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date, the lien provided

for herein shall attach, and in addition the lien shall include a late charge of 10% together with interest on the principal amount due and the late charge at the rate of 18% per annum or at whatever rate the Association shall establish at its annual meeting, all costs of collection, reasonable attorney's fees actually incurred, and any other amounts provided for herein. In the event that the assessment remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, the Association through the Board may institute suit to collect such amounts or to foreclose its lien. Each Owner by his acceptance of a Deed to a Lot, vests in the Association or its agents the right and power to bring actions against him personally for the collection of such charges as a debt or to foreclose the aforesaid lien in the same manner as other liens for the improvement of real property. The lien provided for in this Article shall be in favor of the Association and shall be for the benefit of all Owners. The Association acting on behalf of the Owners shall have the power to bid on the Lot at any foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage and convey same. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by nonuse of the common areas and landscape areas or by abandonment of his Lot.

15. DEPOSITORY.

- (a) The depository of the Association shall be such bank or banks as shall be designated from time to time by the Directors and in which the monies of the Association shall be deposited. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by checks signed by such persons as are authorized by the Directors.
- (b) An audit of the accounts of the Association shall be made annually by an accountant, and a copy of the report shall be furnished to each member not later than April 1 of the year following the year for which the report is made.
- 16. <u>PARLIAMENTARY RULES</u>. <u>Robert's Rules of Order</u> (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association meetings when not in conflict with the Restrictions and these Bylaws.
- 17. <u>INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS</u>. The Association shall indemnify every Director or officer, his or her heirs, executors, and administrators, against all losses, costs, and expenses, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with any action, suit or proceeding to which he or she may have been a party by reason of his or her being or having been a Director or officer of the Association, as set forth in the Articles. Provided, however, that said liability limitation shall not apply:
- 1. For any transaction for which the director's personal financial interests are in conflict with the financial interests of the Corporation;

- 2. For acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or are known to the director to be in violation of a law; or
- 3. For any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

All liability, loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred or suffered by the Association by reason of or arising out of or in connection with this indemnification provision shall be treated and handled by the Association as common expense; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall be deemed to obligate the Association to indemnify any member or owner of a lot who is or has been a Director or officer of the Association with respect to any duties or obligations assumed or liabilities incurred by him or her under and by virtue of the Restrictions or as a member or owner of a lot covered by the Restrictions and these Bylaws, any amendments to such documents, and other rules and regulations imposed by the Association.

18. <u>PROMULGATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF RULES AND REGULATIONS.</u>

- (a) The property shall be used only for those uses and purposes set out in the Restrictions. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to make and to enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing the conduct, use, and enjoyment of the lots and the common areas, provided that copies of all such rules and regulations be furnished to all owners.
- (b) The Board shall not impose a fine, suspend voting, or infringe upon any other rights of a member or other occupant for violation of rules, regulations, or restrictions unless and until the following procedure is followed:
 - (1) DEMAND. Written demand to cease and desist from any alleged violation shall be served upon the alleged violator specifying: (i) the alleged violation; (ii) the action required to abate the violation; (iii) a time period, not less than ten (10) days during which the violation may be abated without further sanction; and (iv) a statement that any further violation of the same rule may result in the imposition of sanctions after notice and hearing if the violation is not discontinued.
 - (2) NOTICE. Within one (1) month of such demand, if the violation continues past the period allowed in the demand for abatement without penalty, or if the same rule, regulation, or

restriction is subsequently violated, the Board of Directors shall serve the violator with written notice of a hearing to be held by the Board of Directors in executive session. The notice shall contain: (i) the nature of the alleged violation; (ii) the time and place of the hearing, which shall be not less than ten (10) days from the giving of the notice; (iii) an invitation to attend the hearing and produce any statement, evidence, and witness on his or her behalf; and (iv) the proposed sanction to be imposed.

(3) HEARING. The hearing shall be held in executive session pursuant to this Notice affording the owners/alleged violator a reasonable opportunity to be heard. Prior to the effectiveness of any sanction imposed, proof of notice and the invitation to be heard shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. Such proof shall be deemed adequate if a copy of the notice together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery is entered into the minutes by the officer or Director who delivered such notice. The notice requirement shall be deemed satisfied if a violator appears at the meeting. The minutes shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing and the sanction, if any, imposed.

19. INFORMATION AND LENDER'S NOTICES.

- (a) The Association shall make available for inspection, upon request, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances current copies, as amended, of the Restrictions and Bylaws, and books, records, financial statements of the Association, and other rules of this project to lot owners and lenders, and to holders, insurers, or guarantors of any first mortgage.
- (b) Upon written request to the Association, identifying the name and address of the holder, insurer, or guarantor, and the lot number or address, any mortgage holder, insurer, or guarantor shall be given timely written notice of:
 - (1) Any condemnation or casualty loss that affects either a material portion of the project or the lot securing its mortgage;
 - (2) A lapse, cancellation, or material modification of any insurance policy or fidelity bond maintenance by the Association; and
 - (3) Any proposed action that requires the consent of a specified percentage of mortgage holders.

- 20. <u>AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS</u>. These Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:
- (a) Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.
- (b) A resolution adopting the proposed amendment may be proposed by either the Board of Directors or by the members of the Association. Directors and members not present in person or by proxy at the meetings considering the amendment may express their approval in writing, providing such approval is delivered to the Secretary at or prior to the meeting. Such approvals must be by at least sixty-six percent (66%) of the entire membership of the Board of Directors and by not less than a majority of the votes of the entire membership of the Association. Until the first election of Directors, all Directors must approve any amendments.
- (c) No amendment shall discriminate against any lot owner or owners unless the lot owners so affected shall consent in writing. No amendment shall change any lot nor the share in the common area, nor increase any owner's share of the common expenses, nor change the voting rights of members, unless the record owner of the lot concerned and all record owners of liens thereon shall join in the execution of the amendment.
- (d) A copy of each amendment shall be certified by the President and secretary of the Association as having been duly adopted and shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

Approved this 16th day of October, 2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT OF PAYNES LANDING HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Effective December 1, 2018

Pursuant to KRS Chapter 273, we, James M. Parsons, Mark W. Hammel, and Lawrence E. Goodwin, Jr., being all of the members of the Board of Directors of the Paynes Landing Homeowners Association, Inc., a Kentucky non-profit, non-stock corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Association"), unanimously consent to the following Preamble and Resolutions and the actions authorized pursuant to these Preamble and Resolutions:

WHEREAS, the Declarations of Paynes Landing homeowner community, as more fully set forth in **EXHIBIT A** and as amended now and in the future (collectively the "Declarations"), established the community and the Association governing same, including the Declarations of each and every Unit and Lot subsequently brought into the Paynes Landing community and the Association;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Declarations and the Association's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, the Association is obligated to enforce the Declarations and is authorized to do so through the imposition of fines, sanctions, and other methods;

WHEREAS, the Association has not yet conducted its first election of Directors;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Association, after consideration of the relevant facts, finds that it is in the best interest of the Association to amend the Bylaws to establish uniformity in imposition of fines, sanctions, and other enforcement measures; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Association, after consideration of the relevant facts, finds that the Amendment to Bylaws, the form of which is attached hereto as **Exhibit B**, is a reasonable and appropriate method of fulfilling the Association's enforcement and collection responsibilities, and therefore finds it in the best interests of the Association to adopt same.

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, the Amendment to Bylaws, the form of which is attached hereto as **Exhibit B**, is adopted, effective immediately.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors is authorized to incorporate this amendment into Amended and Restated Bylaws at the Board's sole discretion.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper directors and officers of the Association be and hereby are directed and authorized to take any and all action necessary to implement the Amendment to Bylaws, without further action of the Board of Directors.

WITNESS THE SIGNATURES of James M. Parsons, Mark W. Hammel, and Lawrence E. Goodwin, Jr., being all of the members of the Board of Directors of the Paynes Landing Homeowners Association, Inc., a Kentucky non-profit, non-stock corporation.

JAMES M. PARSONS

MARK W. HAMMEL

LAWRENCE B. GOODWIN, JR.

EXHIBIT A List of Paynes Landing Declarations

Unit or Section:	Recorded in	Page
	Deed Book:	Number:
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 1-48,	MC21	596
Inclusive, and Lots 109-115, Inclusive, Unit 1 Paynes Landing		
(Bevins Property)		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 93-96,	MC22	11
Inclusive, Unit 2 Paynes Landing (Bevins Property)		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 49,	MC22	1
54-63, Inclusive, and Lots 88-92, Inclusive, Unit 2; and Lots 64-		
87, Inclusive, Unit 3; and Lots 50-53, Inclusive, Unit 4 Paynes		
Landing (Bevins Property)	1.004	
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 97-	MC21	846
108, Inclusive, Unit 2 Paynes Landing (Bevins Property)	3.6005	205
Restrictions and Covenants for Paynes Landing – Unit 5	MC27	295
(Canewood Reserve) Plat Cabinet 9, Slide 189	14605	100
First Amendment to Restrictions and Covenants for Paynes	MC27	400
Landing – Unit 5 (Canewood Reserve) Plat Cabinet 9, Slide 189	14000	0.12
Second Amendment to Restrictions and Covenants for Paynes Landing – Unit 5 (Canewood Reserve)	MC29	243
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Section 2,	MC20	427
Unit 6 Paynes Landing (Bevins Property) and Lots 1, 2 and 3	MC28	437
Canewood Reserve		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Unit 7,	MC30	763
Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve) Bevins Property	MC30	703
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 4-18,	MC30	745
Inclusive, Unit 8, Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve) Bevins	WICSU	743
Property		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 19,	MC30	754
20, 107 & 108, Unit 8, Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve)	112000	70.
Bevins Property		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Unit 9,	MC30	736
Paynes Landing, Bevins Property		
Restrictions and Covenants for Paynes Landing – Unit 10	MC29	194
(Canewood Reserve) Plat Cabinet 9, Slide378		
Restrictions and Covenants for Paynes Landing – Unit 11	MC28	724
(Canewood Reserve) Plat Cabinet 9, Slide 358		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 23, 24	MC32	525
and 33, Unit 12-A, Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve)		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Lots 22,	MC31	57
34, 111 and 112, Unit 14, Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve)		
Bevins Property		
Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Unit 15,	MC40	492
Paynes Landing (Canewood Reserve)		

EXHIBIT B

AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS

Paragraph 14 of the Paynes Landing Homeowners Association, Inc. Bylaws is hereby replaced in its entirety as follows:

14. EFFECT OF NONPAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS; REMEDIES OF THE ASSOCIATION. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. All assessments, together with a late fee in the amount of fifteen percent (15%) of any assessment not paid within fifteen (15) days of its due date, together with interest at a rate not to exceed ten percent (10%) per annum or the highest rate allowed by Kentucky law as computed from the date the delinquency first occurs, costs, reasonable attorney's fees, and any other amounts provided for herein, shall be a charge on the land and shall be a continuing lien upon the lot against which each assessment is made. In the event the assessment remains unpaid after thirty (30) days, the Association, through the Board of Directors, may institute suit to collect such amounts or to foreclose its lien. Each Owner, by his acceptance of a Deed to a Lot, vests in the Association or its agents the right and power to bring actions against him personally for the collection of such charges as a debt or to foreclose the aforesaid lien in the same manner as other liens for the improvement of real property. The lien provided for in this Article shall be in favor of the Association and shall be for the benefit of all Owners. The Association acting on behalf of the Owners shall have the power to bid on the Lot at any foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage and convey same. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by nonuse of the common areas and landscape areas or by abandonment of his Lot.

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF PAYNES LANDING HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

February 18, 2020

Pursuant to KRS Chapter 273, we, James M. Parsons, Mark W. Hammel, and Lawrence E. Goodwin, Jr., being all of the members of the Board of Directors of PAYNES LANDING HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Kentucky non-profit, non-stock corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), unanimously consent to the following Preamble and Resolutions and the actions authorized pursuant to these Preamble and Resolutions:

RESOLUTION REGARDING AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

WHEREAS, the Association was created pursuant to those certain Declaration of Covenants, and Restrictions Lots 1-48, Inclusive, and Lots 109-115, Inclusive, Unit 1 Paynes Landing (Bevins Property), of record in the Scott County Clerk's Office in Miscellaneous Book 21, Page 596 (the "Declaration" or the "Restrictions"), as subsequently amended and supplemented;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV(b) of the Association's Articles of Incorporations and Section 22 of the Declaration, the Association has the authority to regulate the properties within the Paynes Landing development, and has done so by enacting Bylaws;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 20(b) of the Association's Bylaws, the Bylaws may be amended with the unanimous consent of the entire Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that it is in the Association's best interests to complete a timely and orderly transition of Developer control of the Association to the Membership, and that amending the Bylaws will facilitate that process.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the following provisions of the Association's Bylaws are hereby amended in the form set forth below:

6. Members' Meetings.

. . . .

(d) At the first meeting called pursuant to paragraph (c) for the purpose of transitioning the Association to member control and electing Directors by membership, one (1) member in attendance shall constitute a quorum. At subsequent member meetings, a quorum of at least ten percent (10%) of all members entitled to cast votes shall constitute a quorum. If the required quorum is not present, another meeting may be called upon written notice of not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) days. Said meeting shall not be required to satisfy the quorum in order to do business. No such subsequent meeting may be held more than sixty (60) days following the preceding meeting.

8. Directors.

(b) At such time as the first Director election following the initial member election to complete transition of Association control from Developer to the members, the election of directors shall be conducted at the annual members' meetings. A nominating committee of three (3) members may be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than thirty (30) days prior to the annual members' meeting. There shall be no nominating committee required for the initial member election transitioning control of the Association from Developer to the members. Additional nominations for Directors may be made from the floor. Directors shall be elected to two (2) year terms each. At the initial member election transitioning control from the Developer, the two (2) Director candidates receiving the most votes shall be elected to a two (2) year term, and the candidate receiving the third-most votes shall be elected to a one (1) year term. Thereafter, Directors shall be elected to two (2) year terms, with two (2) Directors being elected in one year and one (1) Director elected the following year. The election shall be by ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent of the all members entitled to vote) and by a plurality of the votes case, each person voting being entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. There shall be no cumulative voting.

FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon execution by all members of the Board.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper officers and directors are authorized to take all steps necessary to accomplish this Resolution.

WITNESS THE SIGNATURES of JAMES M. PARSONS, MARK W. HAMMEL, and LAWRENCE E. GOODWIN, JR., being all of the members of the Board of Directors of PAYNES LANDING HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Kentucky non-profit, non-stock corporation.

[signatures appear on next page]

This 18th day of February, 2020.

JAMES M. PARSONS, DIRECTOR

MARK W. HAMMEL, DIRECTOR

LAWRENCE E. GOODWIN, JR., DIRECTOR